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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN)} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Estouteville is a rolling, open tract of farmland in southern Albemarle County.
Its imposing Roman Revival mansion house, begun in 1827 by James Dinsmore, who had
worked at the University of Virginia, sits atop a high hill and has a cluster of
early outbuildings nearby.

The main house consists of a two~-story, seven-bay central block, 68 by 43 feet, with
two 35-by-26foot, three-bay, single-story wings, all built of brick laid in Flemish
bond of very high quality workmanship. The whole is set upon a high basement with

a steppediwater table. All of the windows have sandstone lintels with "bull's-eye"
paterae and sandstone sills, as well as six-over-six sash and louvred blinds,

except for the windows flanking the central entry on either facade of the main block,
which have triple-hung, six-~light sash, The entries are treated with restrained, -
fluted-pilaster doorways having wooden-mullioned fanlights, central fluted keystones,
and double doors. A Tuscan cornice embellishes the low hipped roofs of all three
sections, each of which is surmounted by tall interior end chimmeys. Both facades

of the main block are further distinguished by monumental tetrastyle pedimented
porticoes which shelter the three central bays. These have Tuscan columns, full
Tuscan entablatures, and lunettes in their tympana, as well as original flights of
sandstone stairs with scrolled bottom steps.

The plan of Estouteville is strictly symmetrical. The main block is dominated by

the large Great Hall, a 23-by-35-foot room which is flanked by narrow stair passages
along the north side of the house and large parlors at the south, The passages
extend into the wings, and each has a small service room to the north and a moderate-
sized chamber to the south. Each wing terminates in another large room; that at the
west was formerly the dining room and now serves as a library; that at the east is
now the kitchen.

The Great Hall is the most splendidly decorated of the rooms in the house. A full
Doric entablature, with bucrania in the metopes, encircles the room., The ceiling is
treated with a plaster border and a central medallion which combines several elements
from Plate 27 of Asher Benjamin's The American Builder's Companion (1806). The

walls are covered with a French scenic paper installed in 1902,

The flanking parlors (the east one is now a dining room) are treated alike. Full
Ionic entablatures, broken around the projecting chimney breasts, encircle

the room. The mantels consist of fluted colonettes supporting fluted entablature
blocks and boldly projecting shelves with dentil base moldings. Pedestal chair rails
are used in both rooms. Over the mantel in the west rocom is a2 panel of nineteenth-
century wallpaper, installed and colared in recent years.

The passages also have Ionic cornices similar to those in the parlors. The open-
string, triple-run stairs have oval banisters ramped and eased at the newels (which
are Tuscan colonettes); pierced, scrolled brackets; and two rectangular balusters
to a tread. There is a round plaster ceiling medallion in each passage.

{(See Continuation Sheet #2)
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STATEMENT OF SiGNIFICANCE

Thomas Jefferson's architectural legacy survives not only in the famous works of his
own design; it is exemplified in numerous buildings scattered about the Common-

wealth erected by master masons and carpenters, formerly employed by the statesman-
architect, who carried on his distinctive style after his death. Rendered in the -
native materials of brick, wood, and stucco, these buildings make use of the Roman
orders so favored by Jefferson and hence are known as Jeffersonian or Roman Revival.

In working directly from Roman precedent, as interpreted principally by Andrea Palladio,
Jefferson gave the country what might well be considered its first native architec-
tural style. As such, his buildings and those of his disciples merit special con-
sideration in the story of Americam architecture,

Chief among the Roman Revival dwellings designed and built by one of Jefferson's
followers is Estouteville, a house of singular stateliness, located in the scenically
beautiful countryside of southern Albemarle County. The structure was begun in 1827,
the year after Jefferson's death, for John Coles III whose family was well known to
Jefferson. To shelter his growing family, Coles enlisted the services of James
Dinsmore, a talented master carpenter and contractor. Bornm in Scotland, Dinsmore
came to Virginia from Philadelphia and worked for Jefferson on the construction of
both Monticello and the University of Virginia. Through his employment on these
projects he became well-versed in the former President's taste and mode of design.
Dinsmore provided Coles's residence with a monumental air by embellishing each facade
with a giant Tuscan portico. His spacious center hall, decorated with a Doric
entablature with ox-skull metopes, is one of the noblest rooms in Virginia. All of
‘the Classical detailing is executed with an academic correctness that would have met
the approval of Dinsmore's mentor. With the grandeur of its scale, the perfection
of its proportions, the quality of its workmanship, and the beauty of its setting,
- Estouteville ranks among Virginia's prinmcipal architectural treasures. Few places
so well conform to the popular image of an aristocratic Southern homestead. It
meets Jefferson's ideal of an architecturally refined seat suitable for the young
Republic's landed families,
John Coles IIL was born on his family's adjacent estate, Enniscorthy. In a divi-
sion of property, Coles was given a large tract around Green Mountain known as Caly-
canthus Hill while Enniscorthy eventually went to his brother, Isaac Coles. Although
he did not secure title.to the property until 1823, the year following his marriage
to Selimna Skipwith, as early as 1795 he had built there a small dwelling for his own
use, (The house burned in the late nineteenth century.) Upon gaining. title Coles

changed the tract's name to Estouteville, honoring his wife's ancestor, Robert
] .
d'Estouteville, a Norman baron who accompanied William the Congueror to England.

(See Continuation Sheet #3)
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7. DESCRIPTION:

The small north rooms in the wings are undecorated, but that in the west wing,once
a butler's pantry, has an original dumb waiter in the northeast corner.

The south rooms in the wings differ from each other. That in the west block has had
modern partitions installed to give it a polygonal shape, and the ceiling has been
dropped. That in the east wing retains its original shape. It has a Corinthian
cornice, the only plaster cornice employed in the house; the others are of wood.

The mantel has recessed-panel pilasters, a plain frieze and entablature blocks, and
a deep shelf with dentils, '

The end rooms are treated identically and are second only to the Great Hall in the
elaboration of their decoration. Each has a wmantel with a plain frieze and fluted
entablature blocks supported on fluted Roman Doric colonettes and surmounted by a
shelf with a Wall~of-Troy fret base molding. A pedestal chair rail and a full
Doric entablature with a deeply projecting crown molding complete the decoration in
each.

East of the house is an original one-story, two-room, central-chimney kitchen/wash
house. Northeast of this are several other early outbuildings, including a square
frame dairy (now a chicken house) with a pyramidal roof; a square, brick smokehouse,
probably built in the mid-nineteenth century, also covered with a pyramidal roof;
and a frame slave quarters. The latter, which is probably contemporary with the
main house, has a central stone chimney with a late nineteenth-century brick stack,
a two-room plan with a central lobby entrance, and a handsome stair set into the
recess on the opposite side of the chimney from the entrance. It is an L-plan,
closed-string stair with a molded rail, square newel, and diamond-shaped balusters.
Stairs of such elaboration are rare in slave houses.

Northeast of the main house is the stone foundation of an earlier house which was
built in the late eighteenth century and burned in the late nineteenth century. The

foundation has since been incorperated into a swimming pool.

by

Partially bordered by the road and the tree line, Eastouteville's 290-~acre tract
of open, rolling farmland provides an estate-like setting for this Jeffersonian
dwelling.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE:

Goles's new house, sited commandingly overlooking his lands, was ready for occupancy
by 1830.

Estouteville remained in the Coles family until 1910. It was then purchased by

Mr. and Mrs. Vergil Randolph who sold it to George A. Randolph six years later. 1In
1944, the house with approximately 450 acres was purchased by Mr. and Mrs. J.
Prescott Carter. A native of Lynchburg, Mz. Carter is a descendant of Lady Diana
Skipwith, great aunt of Selina Skipwith Coles. WMr. Carter maintains Estouteville
as a working farm.
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